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MARANA 
~~/I\" Town of Marana, Arizona 

Animal Shelter ing Services­
R PP#2016-032 

Offer and Acceptance 
OFFER 

TO THE TOWN OF MARANA: 
The undersigned on behalf of him/herself or on behalf of the entity, firm, company, partnership, or other legal 
entity listed below hereby offers and agrees to furnish the services set forth in the Town of Marana's Request for 
Proposals in compliance with all terms, sta tements of work, conditions, specifications, and amend ments in the 
Request for Proposals. Any exceptions to the terms contained in the Request for Proposals must be specifically 
indicated in writing and are subject to the approval of the Town prior to acceptance. 

Humane Society of Southern Arizona 
Contractor Name 

3450 N. Kelvin Blvd . 

Address 
Tucson Arizona 85716 

CitV4;,~, ~PFV 
Signatu re of Person Authorized to Sign 

Clay Bacon 

Printed Name 
Chief Financial Officer 

Title 

For Clarification of this Offer contact: 
Brandy Burke 

Name 
Chief Operating Officer 

Title 
520321 -3704, ext. 183 

Phone 
520325-7190 

Fax 
bburke@hssaz.org 

Email 

ACCEPTANCE OF OFFER AND NOTICE OF AWARD (TOWN USE O NLY) 

The Offer is hereby accepted . The contract consists of the following documents: 1) the Request for Proposals 
issued by tlle Town; 2) tIle Contractor's response to the Town's Request for Proposals; 3) this written offe r and 
acceptance and notice of award. Contractor is now bound to provide the services listed in the conb'act and 
based upon the Request for Proposals, including all terms, conditions and specifications, the scope of work, 
amendments, Contractor's Offer, and any best and final offers, as accepted by the Town. 

The Contractor shall not commence any billable work or provide any materia ls or service under this contract 
until Contractor is directed to do so in writing by the undersigned . 

Contract No. 

Attest: 

Jocelyn Bronson, Town Clerk 

ttl"'" I ' I' 
I 
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TOWN O F MARANA, 
an Arizona municipal corporation 
Awarded this _ , day of ____ ~, 201 7 

Erik Montague, Finance and Purchas ing 
Director 

A pproved as to form: 

Town Attorney 



ADDENDUM NO.1 
RFP 2016-032 - ANIMAL SHELTER SERVICES 

FEBRUARY 3, 2017 

I. The following information is presented in response to questions received; 

1) Q: Would we need a Marana business license or is our 501c3 status sufficient ­
page 6 under background information 

A: No business license is required. 

2) Q: Page 10 - section b. Rules and Regulations - HSSA has a 133 page Standard Operating 
Procedure Manual and an 85 page medical manual - should those be submitted via Drop Box or 
thumb drive with the RFP? 

A: Putting the information on a thumb drive or cdjdvd is acceptable . Include this information in 
your bids package. 

There have been no other inquiries or questions, no additional inquiries will be accepted. 

Addendum must be signed and made a par t of Proposal Packet. 

ADDENDUM ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 

si~ZL, ;>--Jq /,;.017 
Date 
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REQUEST FOR CLARIFICATION 
RFP 2016-032 ANIMAL SHELTER SERVICES  

  MARCH 6, 2017 

Page 1 of 6 

Sent vial email 

 

Humane Society of Southern Arizona   

Attn.: Brandy Burke, Chief Operating Officer 

3450 N. Kelvin Blvd. 

Tucson, AZ. 85716 

 

Subject: Clarifications regarding certain responses in the RFP 

In order for the Town to better understand your response in the above mentioned RFP we 

would like some clarification on the following questions. 

1. Animal Acceptance - Page 3 item ii – The response indicates that admissions are from 

9:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. Monday-Saturday and 11:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. on Sundays.  The 

response also indicates that HSSA maintains operations approximately 12 hours per 

day, seven days a week. 

a. Which time window will be used to accept Marana animal drop offs?  

The Humane Society of Southern Arizona has staff on premise from 

approximately 6:30am to 6:30pm – The lobby operation times are different due to 

the need for daily preparation (cleaning of kennels, feeding, etc).  Walk in drop 

off times for residents and ACO‟s would occur from 9am-4pm Monday-Saturday 

and 11-5 on Sunday.   

b. Would after hour drop-offs be available?  If so what would be the method of 

delivery?  

 

Animals could be dropped off by Marana ACO‟s earlier or later, as indicated in 

the RFP, page 4, paragraph 4 “Admittance of animals outside of these hours 

should be coordinated with designated HSSA staff”.  Hours could be flexible 

anytime between 7am-6pm to coincide with Marana ACO working shifts. 

 

2. Database and Reports - Page 5 (first paragraph) – Can you provide more background 

on what the database updates would consist of? 

 

The database „updates‟ would be specifically coded to separately identify animals 

coming from within Marana Town limits.  This is an in-house managed program 

and can be quickly updated to meet Town reporting requirements.  
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a. Is this database maintained and updated by HSSA?  

 

Yes, this is database is updated by out IT Director, Jennifer Hubbard 

 

b. Can you provide an example of the monthly report?  

 

Yes, please see the attached report.  This example could include more or less data, 

fees, etc. based on Town reporting requirments. 

 

3. Reports - Page 5 (4th bullet point) – HSSA will advise the Town of Marana of all 

dangerous or potentially dangerous animals and dog bites.  Is this referencing incidents 

that may occur at the HSSA facility during your care?  

 

Yes, this is referencing stray dogs brought in that may begin exhibiting aggressive 

or dangerous behavior after arrival.  If an owner were to reclaim a dog that was 

assessed to be potentially dangerous by HSSA staff, HSSA would contact Town of 

Marana designated officials with pertinent information (owner information, dog 

breed and description, etc.) 

 

However, this could also include „dogs at large‟, confiscated animals or other 

situations that a Town ACO may bring in to HSSA, either relating to a 

disturbance, a bite to a citizen or resident, a dog that has attacked or killed another 

animal, etc.  These situations would be addressed in collaboration with HSSA and 

the designated ACO, or official assigned to the follow up. Some situations could 

result in criminal or civil suits by an injured party and the owner of the animal 

which could result in court mandated euthanasia of the animal in question. 

 

a. Clarify the process of determining an animal’s temperament as being dangerous? 

Dog behavior is assessed a number of ways by staff (reaction to touch, handling, 

examination, restraint and interaction with other dogs and humans).  Dogs that 

show repeated negative, concerning or aggressive behavior, which is also deemed 

to be unsafe to handle by staff, or by the public at large, will be considered for 

Humane Euthanasia.  Every animal is assessed, taking into consideration the 

current environment and reported past negative or aggressive behavior. 

Is there some sort of assessment done, separate from the Maddie’s Fund guidelines, 

on the animals and when is this assessment done? 
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HSSA offers in-house canine decompression through individual work with 

trained staff and volunteers as well as staff monitored dog play groups.   Daily 

dog walking, jogging and other outlets are taken to prevent negative behaviors 

from developing during an animals‟ length of stay with us.  Cats that are showing 

signs of stress are also worked with weekly by volunteers and staff through an 

after-hours socialization program. 

 

b. If an incident were to occur what would be the steps taken? 

 

The circumstances leading up to an incident at HSSA, typically a bite, are always 

reviewed to determine what actions may have occurred by staff/volunteers to 

cause a negative reaction by a cat or dog. The majority of bite incidents are minor, 

but still require a state mandated 10 day quarantine hold to rule out exposure to 

rabies.  99% of all incidents result in a “clearing” of the quarantine hold and the 

animal being placed up for adoption.   

 

If it is a stray animal and has passed the mandated 3 or 5 day hold period, has not 

been reclaimed by an owner, and is deemed unsafe to handle or adopt out, HSSA 

will make the decision to continue to work with or humanely euthanize the 

animal. The Town may be notified of a disposition of a stray animal after the hold 

period, if so desired.  However, after the stray hold, ownership of the animal is 

transferred to HSSA and no longer the financial responsibility of the Town.   

 

*It is important to note that the number of behaviorally aggressive or dangerous 

dogs is a very small percentage of the overall number of animals coming into our 

facility. 

 

c. What method would be used to contact the Town? 

 

Email or preferred method by the Town 

 

4. Locating Owner(s) - Page 7 (second paragraph) – Explain what a “reasonable effort” is 

to reunite an animal with its owner.  What steps are taken?  

 

HSSA employs two full time staff members who receive daily phone call and emails, 

and research lost/found dogs/cats in our community.  We research microchips, 

identification tags, review other websites and social media sites to ensure every effort 

is made to reunite a pet with its owner. 

 



REQUEST FOR CLARIFICATION 
RFP 2016-032 ANIMAL SHELTER SERVICES  

  MARCH 6, 2017 

Page 4 of 6 

5. Animal Case Support - Page 8 (last paragraph) – Are there fees associated for assisting 

in collecting evidence for the Town in prosecution cases? 

 

There is no fee associated in collecting evidence in the prosecution of animal neglect, 

abuse or hoarding cases.  HSSA believes strongly in stopping this cycle.  HSSA also 

currently has 4 full-time staff members trained in humane investigation and report 

writing and will work in conjunction with Town ACO officers in the proper 

collection of evidence and report writing. 

 

6. Veterinary Services - Page 10 (first paragraph) – Clarify what would require veterinary 

services prior to taking them to HSSA?  

 

Emergency or immediate life threatning trauma, such as a „hit by car‟, for 

immediate stabilization or humane euthanasia. (reference page 13 in the RFP 

response, Private Veterinarian/Emergency Veterinary Care.  Animals that are 

emaciated, appear sick, or have suffered some form of neglect or abuse, but which 

are stable, should be brought to HSSA for medical assessment. 

 

a. HSSA is able to take in stray animals as a transfer from veterinary clinics.  Would 

HSSA handle the transfer or the Town? 

 

The first available party could pick up animals which have been dropped off at 

emergency clinics (HSSA, Town ACO or the Veterinary clinic could provide 

transport).  HSSA could also recruit volunteer help in the transport of animals 

when needed from veterinary clinics to HSSA. 

 

7. Cruelty Education - Page 10 (last paragraph) – Are there fees associated to the “Court 

mandated Animal Cruelty Education” and who is responsible for these fees? 

      The individual convicted or mandated by the court is responsible for any fees. 

 

8. Special Intake One-time Fee - Page 12 (special intake fees) – Clarify the $35 what the 

special intake fee consists of?  Only those cases described in the note to the fee? Are 

these animals quarantined separate from all other animals? 

 

Please see the attached fee schedule.  The $35 special intake fee should have been 

written as a „daily fee‟ ($35 per day times number of days impounded) for cases 

pertaining to those notated by the * asterik (bite cases brought in by ACO‟s, animals 

confiscated by ACO‟s due to hoarding, pending court cases mandated to be held by 

Police, Town or ACO request (could include owner arrested or potentially dangerous 
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or vicious dog which is part of an investigation).  These animals would be separated 

from other animals. 

 

9. Special Intake Daily Fee - Page 13 (Observation/Special Intake service) – The RFP 

response indicates that there will be a daily $35 fee for special intake animals in addition 

to the one-time $35 intake fee.  Why the increase in the daily rate?     

 

The one-time fee of $35 is misquoted in the original RFP. There is no additional one-

time $35 fee in addition to the $35 daily fee.  The increase for „special cases‟ is due to 

the increased needs associated with animals that are required by law or by  request of 

the Town to stay longer than the county stray hold period.  The extended length of 

stay will result in an increase in daily care and medical costs for those animals.  

 

*As noted on page 13 under Hoarding Cases – HSSA recommends the Town law 

enforcement and ACO‟s work diligently to secure owner surrender at the time of any 

confiscated animal(s).  This limits the impound time and expense to the Town, and 

also enables HSSA to make decisions in the best interest of each animal (ongoing 

medical care, humane euthanasia, adoption, transfer, etc.)  Many cases can still be 

prosecuted, in lieu of an animal being held for extended periods, while waiting on a 

case to make it through the system.  

 

 

Responses required by March 12, 2017 at 5:00 pm.    

 

 

Feel free to contact me with any questions you may have. 

 
Rudy Torres 
Procurement Officer 
 
Town of Marana 
11555 W. Civic Center Dr.  
Marana, Az. 85653 
Phone (520) 382-1983 
rtorres@maranaaz.gov 
 
 

 

mailto:rtorres@maranaaz.gov
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Sent via email 

 

Humane Society of Southern Arizona   

Attn.: Brandy Burke, Chief Operating Officer 

3450 N. Kelvin Blvd. 

Tucson, AZ. 85716 

 

Subject: Clarifications regarding certain responses in the HSSA’s February RFP Proposal. 

In order for the Town to better understand your response in the above mentioned RFP we 

would like some clarification on the following questions. 

1. Veterinary Fees.  Please provide clarification as to veterinary fees, as follows. 

a. HSSA’s proposed fee schedule (Page 12 Fee Proposal) includes fees labeled “Emergency 

Vet Care” and “Non-emergency Vet Care” and lists “one-time fees” of $50 and $25 

respectively.  What veterinary services do those fees cover?  How are “emergencies” 

and “non-emergencies” defined for purposes of this one-time fee? 

 

“Emergency Vet Care” would be defined within the following scope:   Stray animals 

entering HSSA’s facility needing immediate assessment by our Veterinarian for 

stabilization.  Conditions could include dehydration, wound cleaning, positive for 

Parvovirus, etc.  The $50 fee would cover medical conditions needing immediate 

Veterinary intervention and attention, but not necessarily life-threatening in nature. 

(fluids, pain management, wound wraps, snap tests, etc.)  Life-threatening issues should 

be referred to a full-service Veterinary Clinic the Town has contracted with. 

 

See b. for clarification on the $25 fee  

 

b. On page 7 last paragraph of HSSA’s February proposal, it states:  “Contagious Illnesses 

(kennel cough, giardia, etc.) will be treated during the stray hold period and is the 

responsibility of the Town at a flat fee for medications. (Attachment B).”  Please clarify 

this statement.  Does this statement relate to the $50 and $25 fees on the fee schedule 

and mentioned in paragraph (a) above?  If not, what “flat fee for medications” are you 

referring to? 

 

The $25 one-time fee for “Non-emergency Vet Care” would cover the cost of antibiotics 

during the stray hold period for any potential contagious illnesses (doxycycline, 

amoxicillin, clavamox, etc.) 
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c. It is the Town’s understanding that the Town will be responsible for the actual costs of 

all necessary veterinary fees for impounded animals during the impound period and for 

stray animals during the stray animal hold period (unless these fees are ultimately paid 

by the animal’s owner).  Is this understanding correct?  If so, are these costs in addition 

to the $50 and $25 “one-time fee”? 

 

Yes, that is correct.  Any necessary veterinary services of a surgical nature needing to be 

performed during the stray hold period would be billed to the Town.  The pricing would 

mirror our in house fees.  (Examples:  Pyrometra/dystocia surgery = $200, eye 

enucleation =$100; Emergency Leg Amputation = $150).  These could be in addition to 

the $25 or $50 one-time fee, upon assessment, emergency surgical services were 

deemed necessary by our Veterinarian. If an owner came forward, they would be 

responsible for the fees and the Town not billed or would be credited for services if 

previously billed and paid for by the Town. 

 

d. Can HSSA provide a fee schedule for common veterinary procedures that the Town may 

be responsible for, such as standard vaccinations? 

 

Standard vaccinations are included in the $25 per day fee for strays and the $45 one-

time fee for owner released pets.  This includes DAPP, Rabies, Oral INB, Canine Flu, de-

wormer and frontline for dogs.  This includes PRC, Rabies, de-wormer and Felv/FIV Snap 

testing for cats.  Micro-chipping is included for both canines and felines. 

 

HSSA is committed to helping keep pets with their owners, when possible.  We 

encourage the Town to consider putting financial resources toward Education and 

Outreach efforts and events for vaccination, micro-chipping and spay/neuter clinics for 

Marana Town residents. 

 

2. Does HSSA anticipate any fee increases for years 2 and 3 for the other fees submitted in its 

proposal?   

a. Animal Pick-up Service - $50/animal this is a one-time flat fee of $50, not per animal.  

No fee increase proposed in years 2 and 3 

b. License Processing Fee - $4/license – no fee increase proposed in years 2 and 3 

 

3. For hoarding cases, HSSA suggests that animals should be surrendered by owner at time of 

confiscation.  If the owner does surrender the hoarded animals, who is responsible for the costs 

of impound, boarding, veterinary care, etc. of the animals? 

 

If an owner surrenders pets at time of confiscate, this would be considered a “voluntary 

surrender”.  The Town would be billed a one-time fee of $45 per animal.  The remainder of costs 
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for boarding and veterinary care would be covered/subsidized by HSSA through fundraising 

efforts. 

 

If pets are not a “voluntarily surrender” and are required to be held by HSSA for a period 

determined by the court bond requirements, the Town would be charged the daily fee of $35 

per animal and any emergency care as referenced in c., or non-emergency care referenced in b. 

 

4. Will Marana citizens be required to pay a drop-off fee for stray animals? 

 

No, this will be billed to the Town, per the RFP fee of $25 per day for the mandated stray hold 

period (3 days for unlicensed pets, 5 days for licensed pets).  If a pet is reclaimed, the owner 

would be responsible for the costs. 

 

5. Can you clarify in detail what the $4.00 license processing fee would cover? 

 

HSSA staff time for processing, data entry and remittance of fees collected, to the Town 

 

 

 

Responses required by March 31, 2017 at 5:00 pm.    

 

 

Feel free to contact me with any questions you may have. 

 
Rudy Torres 
Procurement Officer 
 
Town of Marana 
11555 W. Civic Center Dr.  
Marana, Az. 85653 
Phone (520) 382-1983 
rtorres@maranaaz.gov 
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